### **Brigham Young University Law School**

# **BYU Law Digital Commons**

Utah Court of Appeals Briefs (2007-)

2016

John Mardesich, Plaintiff and Appellant, v. Antiiony Bros. Construction, a Utah Corporation, Dba Anthony Bros. Pool & Spa; Sun Hill Homes, I.c., and John Does I-X, Defendants and Appellees.

**Utah Court of Appeals** 

Follow this and additional works at: https://digitalcommons.law.byu.edu/byu\_ca3



Part of the Law Commons

Original Brief Submitted to the Utah Supreme Court; digitized by the Howard W. Hunter Law Library, J. Reuben Clark Law School, Brigham Young University, Provo, Utah.

#### **Recommended Citation**

Brief of Appellant, Mardesich v Anthony Bros Con, No. 20150730 (Utah Court of Appeals, 2016). https://digitalcommons.law.byu.edu/byu\_ca3/3645

This Brief of Appellant is brought to you for free and open access by BYU Law Digital Commons. It has been accepted for inclusion in Utah Court of Appeals Briefs (2007-) by an authorized administrator of BYU Law Digital Commons. Policies regarding these Utah briefs are available at http://digitalcommons.law.byu.edu/ utah\_court\_briefs/policies.html. Please contact the Repository Manager at hunterlawlibrary@byu.edu with questions or feedback.

# **UTAH COURT OF APPEALS**

JOHN MARDESICH,

ADDENDUM TO BRIEF OF APPELLANT

Plaintiff and Appellant,

٧.

ANTHONY BROS. CONSTRUCTION, a Utah corporation, dba ANTHONY BROS. POOL & SPA; SUN HILL HOMES, L.C., and JOHN DOES I-X,

Case No: 20150730

District Court No. 080502342

Defendants and Appellees.

### ADDENDUM TO BRIEF OF APPELLANT

Appeal from Judge G. Michael Westfall's Decision of the Fifth Judicial District Court

Washington County, Utah

Adam C. Dunn Clifford V. Dunn 110 West Tabernacle P.O. Box 2318 St. George, UT 84770 Attorney for Appellees

James L. Spendlove JENSENBAYLES, LLP 216 W. St. George Blvd., Ste. 200 St. George, UT 84770 Attorney for Appellant

UTAH APPELLATE COURTS

APR 0 5 2016

#### **UTAH COURT OF APPEALS**

JOHN MARDESICH,

ADDENDUM TO BRIEF OF APPELLANT

Plaintiff and Appellant,

v.

ANTHONY BROS. CONSTRUCTION, a Utah corporation, dba ANTHONY BROS. POOL & SPA; SUN HILL HOMES, L.C., and JOHN DOES I-X,

Case No: 20150730

District Court No. 080502342

Defendants and Appellees.

#### ADDENDUM TO BRIEF OF APPELLANT

Appeal from Judge G. Michael Westfall's Decision of the Fifth Judicial District Court Washington County, Utah

Adam C. Dunn Clifford V. Dunn 110 West Tabernacle P.O. Box 2318 St. George, UT 84770 Attorney for Appellees James L. Spendlove JENSENBAYLES, LLP 216 W. St. George Blvd., Ste. 200 St. George, UT 84770 Attorney for Appellant

# **ADDENDA**

EXHIBIT A Sun Hill Homes, L.C. Real Estate Purchase Contract for Constructon

EXHIBIT B Rosenberg Grading Plan

EXHIBIT C December 2, 2013 Trial Transcript pp 42-54

EXHIBIT D Findings, Conclusions and Judgment March 17, 2014.

EXHIBIT E Decision and Order Granting Sun Hill Homes, L.C. Motion for New Trial

EXHIBIT F June 29, 2015 Hearing Transcript pp 11-12.

DATED this \_\_\_\_\_\_ day of March, 2016.

JENSENBAYLES, LLP

es L. Spendlove

2

# **CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE**

I hereby certify that on the 4th day of April, 2016, I caused to be served a copy of foregoing document, on the parties listed below as follows:

Party(ies) Served	Method of Service
Utah Court of Appeals	Mail Mail
450 South State Street	Hand Delivery
P.O. Box 140230	Electronic File
Salt Lake City, UT 84114-0230	Email
	Fax (Person agreed to service by
	fax.)
Attorney for Defendant	Mail Mail
Adam C. Dunn	Hand Delivery
Clifford V. Dunn	Fax (Person agreed to service by
110 West Tabernacle	fax.)
P.O. Box 2318	Email (agreed to service by email.)
St. George, UT 84770	Electronic File
	Λ
	Mende Perkins
	PARALEGAL

DEC 4 2004

6:30 pm

# SUN HILL HOMES, L.C. REAL ESTATE PURCHASE CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION

# REAL ESTATE PURCHASE AGREEMENT AND EARNEST MONEY DEPOSIT RECEIPT

		Date	16-Nov-2004
Summary of Terms		<b></b>	
1.1 Parties to Agreemen	t. Sun Hill Homes LC, locate Seller" of the property describ	d at 2240 ed below.	W. Sunbrook Drive
Marie	voice of any property outside		ardesich
First	Middle	Lβ	at
First 8000 Charles Drive	Middle Santa Clarita	Le	st CA 91350
Street	City		State
861 ) 296-8403 Telephone			
e Broker as Earnost Money Five 5,000.00  y oheok, cash	e Thousand and no/100, other, s offer by all parties shall be a Realty Trust _ Account.		Dollars,
ne terms and conditions und ertain real property located	urchase and Sell the Proper er which Seller agrees to sell in the Sumbrook Communiti t forth in the Summary of Te	, and Buy os (the "I	er agrees to purchase of"), as described in
lections 1 & 2. All terms se his agreement.	·		n etitorceanie bair o
his agreement. 1.3 <u>Property.</u> Earne Junbrook Communities, in W	st Money is in receipt for ashington County, Utah with forth herein. The Lot and in wing:	the puro	hase of a lot in the

Buyer Initials mm



COMMUNITY Woodlands	•
PROPERTY ADDRESS	
LOT/PHASE 8 PLAN Cottonwood ELEVA	TIONPLAT
LOCATION OF GARAGE* [X] LEFT SIDE [ ] RIGHT *Predetermined (See Plat for details)	SIDE (As Buyer face the Lot from the street)
1.4 Total Purchase Price and Financing	
Base Price	\$ 449,000.00
Lot Premium	\$ 29,900.00
Total Base Purchase Price	\$ 478,900.00
Less Earnest Money Deposit	\$ 5,000.00
Balance Due on or Before Closing	§ 473,900.00
<ol> <li>A 20% construction deposit will be required at</li> <li>Additional options/upgrade deposit due at designment of the part of the reserves the right</li> </ol>	n selection.
prior to start of construction.	M ACTUA WASHINGHIN OT 13HADL & INHOR
<ul> <li>Note: The Total Base Purchase Price may be accepted to Center options, changes, or extras selections construction, or otherwise pursuant to this Agra ALL BUILDING PERMIT AND CONNECTION.</li> <li>1.5 Estimated Construction Start Date: 30</li> </ul>	eted by Buyor prior to or during ement, SELLER AGREES TO PAY ON FEES.
(See details in Paragraph #6.1) Estimated Closing Date: 6 months from exca	vetion
Cash Conventional financing	% Other
1.5.1. In the event that a portion of purchase, this Agreement is contingent upo Within 7 (seven) days of execution of this 2	Agreement, Buyer agrees to apply for
Buyer Initials 77777	Seller Initials

**(2)** 

and thereafter diligently seek to consummate a mortgage loan for the Property. Buyer represents that Buyer is qualified to obtain a loan for the Loan Amount sought and agrees that Seller may proceed in reliance upon that representation and incur expense to process this Agreement. Buyer agrees to make all payments as required and assist the prospective lender by completing and submitting to that lender all documents required by the lender for successful loan processing and thereafter secure loan approval from all necessary parties within 30 (thirty) days from the day of the acceptance of this Agreement.

- 1.5.2. In the event of Buyer's failure to comply with the foregoing requirements (time being of the essence) or if Seller is sooner informed that Buyer has failed to timely submit all requested forms and/or information to qualify or has failed to qualify for the contemplated financing, Seller shall be entitled to (i) transfer Buyer's loan application to a lender specified by Seller at no additional cost to Buyer, and in the event that a loan commitment is forthcoming from a new lender at substantially the same terms and rates as Buyer's initial loan request, Buyer shall be required to complete this Agreement and close on the Property, or (ii) Seller may consider Buyer in default and exercise Seller's rights set forth in Section 15. Provided, however, that if Buyer has unsuccessfully used all reasonable efforts to obtain a loan and Buyer's lender notifies Seller in writing no later than 30 days from the date of this Agreement, then this Agreement shall terminate and Seller shall refund the Earnest Money and all other sums paid to Seller by Buyer, less any costs incurred by Seller in relation to Buyer's loan application and the costs incurred by Seller for any Options Selected or nonstandard features, including materials and supplies for the same ordered by Buyer or in Buyer's behalf, but not yet paid. Buyer further agrees to sign a document that this Agreement has been terminated and releasing Seller from any further obligations under this Agreement.
- 1.5.3. Buyer acknowledges that interest rates and loan fees on loans available to finance Buyer's purchase fluctuate and may increase or decrease during the period between the date of this Agreement and the date on which a lender commits to making a loan to Buyer. Buyer agrees that such fluctuations are of concern only to Buyer and Buyer's lender and shall not affect the rights or obligations between Buyer and Seller as set forth herein. Buyer agrees to pay any fees required by Buyer's lender or other costs associated with obtaining Buyer's loan at or before closing
- 2. <u>Description of the Property.</u> The Property to be purchased by Buyer includes the Lot, the Home that has or will be constructed on the Lot, and all easements, rights-of-way and other rights owned by Seller and benefiting the Lot (excluding, however, any such easements, rights-of-way, common areas, or other rights which are offered through the Community Association and the <u>Woodlands</u>

  Association or retained for Seller's exclusive benefit).

3

Buyer Initials / Mm

- 3. <u>Utilities to the Property.</u> The Property, upon completion of construction, will have the following improvements: connection to public electricity, sewer and water, connection to natural gas, telephone and cable TV, paved streets for ingress and agress. Such improvements are included within the Purchase Price.
- 4. Holding of Money Deposited with Seller. All Earnest Money and other sums paid by Buyer to Seller, shall be maintained in a manner that complies with Utah law. Seller shall not be required to pay Buyer for, and Buyer shall not be entitled to any interest accruing on those funds.
- 5. Loan Closing Fees and Costs. Seller shall provide Buyer with written notice of substantial completion of Buyer's Home. Buyer agrees to cause Buyer's lender to pay the loan proceeds to Seller as part of the Purchase Price at closing. All fees, costs, and expenses relating to the loan and Buyer's application for a loan shall be paid by Buyer at or before the Closing, including all application fees, discount fees, origination fees, prepaid interest, "points", credit application fees, title policy premiums, survey fee, insurance premiums, recording fees, appraisal fees and escrows for taxes and insurance. Buyer is responsible to put all utilities in Buyer's name on or before taking occupancy.
- 5.1. <u>Date</u>. Seller shall attempt to notify Buyer approximately 30 days prior to the closing date so schedules may be established. There shall be no deviation from the Closing schedule set forth herein except upon written agreement of both Buyer and Seller.
- 5.2. <u>Place.</u> The Closing shall occur at the <u>Sunbrook Sales Center</u>, or at such place in Washington County, Utah as Seller may designate in the notice sent to <u>Buyer regarding the Closing Date.</u>
- 5.3. <u>Documents.</u> Upon Close of Escrow and recordation of the Special Warranty Deed (the "Deed") conveying fee title in the Property to Buyer, Seller shall deliver to Buyer a copy of the Deed, subject only to current taxes (not yet due and payable as of Closing), assessments, the Governing Documents for the community, and other restrictions, rights-of-way, easements, and other matters of record adversely affecting Buyer's use of the Property. Seller shall also sign and deliver such other documents as are customarily signed in Utah in connection with the conveyance of real property, including all required closing statements, releases, and evidence of authority to execute the documents.
- 5.4 Closing Costs. Seller shall pay the expense of preparing the Special Warranty Deed and the other documents described in Section 5.3 that are prepared and signed by Seller. Clear title evidenced by a standard owner's policy of title insurance in an amount equal to the Purchase Price shall be paid for by Seller. Seller shall also pay for one-half of the closing agent's closing or settlement fees. Buyer shall be responsible to pay at the Closing all other fees, costs and expenses relating to the Closing, including one-half of the closing agent's closing or settlement fees; the cost to prepare the

4

Buyer Initials Mim

documents (except the Deed) described in Section 5.3 to be signed by Buyer, all fees, costs, discount points, escrowed funds and other expenses associated with any Loan.

- 5.5. Seller's Liability at Closing. Seller shall not be liable to Buyer for any costs, expenses, liabilities, losses or damages incurred by Buyer as a result of a delay in the Closing, including without limitation, any increase in commitment fees, points or interest assessed or charged by any lender.
- 5.6. Prorations at Closing. All real property taxes relating to the Property for the year of the Closing shall be prorated between Seller as of the date of the Closing. If the amount of taxes for such year are not known at the time of Closing, the pro-rations shall be based on the latest information available at the time of Closing concerning assessed values and tax rates. Seller agrees to use the best available estimate to prorate taxes and such estimates shall be final as between both parties. Buyer shall be responsible for Buyer's membership in the Sunbrook Master Owners Association prorated according to the number of days remaining in the fiscal quarter in which Closing occurs. Thereafter, membership assessments will be due in accordance with the Governing Documents.
- 5.7. <u>Actual Possession of Home by Buyer</u>. Upon recordation of the Deed, Selier shall deliver to Buyer two (2) sets of keys for the Home and possession of the Property. At that time Buyer may begin occupancy.
- 5.8. <u>Risk of Loss.</u> All risk of loss to the Property, including physical damage or destruction to the Property or its improvements due to any cause except ordinary wear and tear and loss caused by a taking in eminent domain, shall be borne by Seller until the transaction is closed. After Closing all risk of loss shall be borne by Buyer, regardless of the date and time Buyer takes actual possession of the Home.
- 5.9. <u>Survival</u>. The covenants, disclaimers and agreements contained in this Agreement shall not be deemed to be merged into or waived by the instruments executed at Closing, but shall expressly survive the Closing and continue to be binding upon both parties.

6. Design Consultation. No later than seven (7) days following the date of this Agreement, Buyer must contact Roseann Campbell and schedule a consultation appointment to select the owner options ("Options") available to Buyer. Buyer's consultation appointment must be scheduled and take place within 30 days of the date of this Agreement. If construction of the Home has commenced, Buyer must meet as soon as possible but not later than seven (7) days from the date of this Agreement to make any remaining selections. During the consultation appointment, Buyer shall be given the opportunity to select Options for the following items and others that may be available: counter tops, lighting, floor covering, cabinets, and interior and exterior colors, all from a palette of colors and range of styles available for the model Buyer has selected. Buyer's final selections must be delivered to Seller in writing within fourteen (14) days after Buyer's consultation appointment. The options selected become an Addendum to this Agreement. Nothing in this Section 6 shall be

5

Buyer Initials hh

construed as a waiver of any of the requirements for approval from the Architectural Control Committee that may be set forth in the Governing Documents.

- 6.1. Prices for Options. The Prices for Options selected by Buyer shall be those in effect on the date of Buyer's final selection. All prices are subject to change prior to Buyer's final selection. Within seven (7) days after the date of Buyer's final selection Buyer must pay Seller a deposit (the "Option Deposit") equal to fifty percent (50%) of the price of the Options selected or non-standard features selected by Buyer, with the balance due at Closing. Options selected may not be available if Buyer delivers final selection to Seller later than stipulated in Section 7. All deposits or payments made by Buyer for non-standard options are non-refundable. A list of non-standard options is available from Seller.
- 6.2. Replacement Options Selected. If any Options chosen by Buyer are unavailable at the time of construction or Seller otherwise determines in Seller's sole discretion, that it is necessary for Buyer to select replacement Options, Buyer agrees to choose replacement items from Seller's then current inventory within seven (7) days after Buyer receives notice from Seller. If Buyer fails to timely select replacement Options, Seller may make a replacement selection for Buyer, which selection shall be as similar as reasonably possible to the items originally selected by Buyer.
- 6.3. <u>Purchasing a Finished Home.</u> Despite any conflicting terms in this Agreement, if Buyer is purchasing a home that has already been constructed, the above schedules are not applicable to Buyer. However, if Buyer requires any changes or if there are unfinished items in the home purchased by Buyer, Buyer must make final selection of all Options within (7) days of signing this Agreement.
- 6.4. Extra Options. Seller's model homes and promotional materials contain optional and extra design features such as floor coverings, decorator light fixtures, wall coverings, window treatments, furniture, built-ins, swimming pools or spas, and furnishings. These items shall not be included in Buyer's Home, unless specifically ordered and paid for in accordance with Section 7.
- 6.5. <u>Construction Options and Options Selected.</u> Buyer acknowledges that Seller shall not be obliged to construct or install, and that Seller shall not commence construction or installation of any Options or non-standard features until both parties have signed an amendment to this Agreement and Buyer has paid Seller the applicable Option Deposit.
- 6.6. Interest Charges on Items Not Paid. Amounts not paid by the scheduled dates, as indicated above, are subject to an interest charge of one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month.
- 7. Construction of the Home. Seller agrees to construct the Home on the Lot, including any options, change orders and any non-standard features described in this Agreement or any Amendment or addendum executed by both parties, in substantial conformity with

¢

Buyer Initials M.M.

Seiler's Standard Plans and Specifications as of the time of Start of Construction. All changes to Seller's Plans and Specifications requested by Buyer shall be evidenced by a written change order signed by Buyer and shall not be effective until accepted in writing by Seller.

7.1. Start of Construction, For purposes of this Agreement, the "Start of Construction" for the Home shall be understood to mean the date on which Seller issues the "Notice to Proceed" to contractors for the Home. The Notice to Proceed shall typically include a group of homes that is being constructed by Seller in a single sequence. Seller shall make reasonable efforts to send Buyer a written notice stating the date on which Start of Construction has occurred. Projections concerning start of Construction are estimates only. Seller shall not be required to commence construction on Buyer's Home until it is the next home scheduled for construction according to Seller's sequence of construction. Further, Seller stresses that many factors, including changes in construction plans, weather or acts of God may prevent Seller from doing so. Moreover. Buyer is responsible for performing certain obligations that may affect the timing of construction, such as scheduling a consultation appointment to select the Options, paying the down payment and timely applying for and obtaining approval of any loan. Buyer's failure to timely perform these obligations shall constitute a default of this Agreement and shall entitle Seller to terminate this Agreement and exercise any remedies for such default provided for herein.

7.2. Completion of Construction. Seller agrees to proceed with reasonable diligence to complete the Home in accordance with Seller's building schedule. Buyer understands, however, that scheduling of construction is difficult and that unexpected delays in completion are common. Seller shall use reasonable efforts to keep Buyer informed of the progress in the construction of Buyer's Home. Buyer understands and agree that Seller makes no guarantee as to the actual date of completion and that in no event shall Seller be responsible in any manner for any inconvenience, loss, damage, or expense to Buyer, including loss of loan commitment or interest rate lock, resulting from delays in construction.

A landscaping allowance is included in the price of Buyer's Home and landscaping will be completed prior to closing, if possible. In the event Buyer's landscaping is not complete at the time of closing (due to weather conditions), Buyer agrees to proceed with the normal closing and to place into escrow sufficient funds, to guarantee landscape completion in a timely manner.

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