2016

**John Mardesich, Plaintiff and Appellant, v. Anthony Bros.
Construction, a Utah Corporation, DbA Anthony Bros. Pool & Spa;
Sun Hill Homes, l.c., and John Does I-X, Defendants and Appellee
(Sun Hill) Anthony Bros. Construction, a Utah Corporation, DbA
Anthony Bros. Pool& Spa, Third-Party Plaintiff, v. Marie Mardesich,
Third-Party Defendant and Appellant**

Utah Court of Appeals

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

Instead, Judge Westfall found, the REPC is “far from being silent” and does impose on Appellants the duty for proper engineering of an improvement such as the swimming pool. R. 1760. Judge Westfall also concluded that it is “...unreasonable to circumvent this express provision by purporting to fill a void about the risk of loss associated with the placement of additional soil.” R. 1760.

As stated above, a breach of contract claim requires performance by the party seeking recovery. *Blair*, 2001 UT at ¶14 (citation omitted). Here, it is uncontroverted that the Appellants failed to properly engineer the pool for the soils at Lot 8. It is uncontroverted that the Appellant knew that it was his obligation to hire someone to properly engineer the pool. Yet, in spite of the explicit contractual requirements, and the Appellant’s knowledge of this requirement, the pool was not properly engineered¹⁴. As such, there is a breach by the Appellant of the REPC requiring that improvements, such as the pool, be “properly engineered”. Due to this breach, the Appellants cannot and did not meet the second element of a breach of contract claim requiring “performance by party seeking recovery.” *Blair*, 2001 UT at P14. Judge Westfall correctly found that this contractual obligation regarding engineering the pool placed the risk of loss on the Appellants and ruled in Sun Hill’s favor.

///

///

///

¹⁴ Anthony Bros. was put on notice of the soil conditions and potential lack of compaction, and yet Anthony Bros. disregarded such information and failed to properly engineer the pool for such soil conditions.

IV. Judge Westfall properly concluded that the REPC *does not* impose a duty on Sun Hill to investigate the suitability of the soil added to Lot 8 for a pool.

After finding that the REPC was the agreement of the parties and concluding that there was no other agreement between the Appellants and Sun Hill, Judge Shumate stated that:

[i]t's the Court's position that the reasonable interpretation of the contract, the REP-C [sic], Exhibit 1, would impose a duty upon Sunhill [sic] to make investigation as to the utility of this additional buildable area on the lot because this was a different lot than they bound themselves under the contract and placed the burden, the risk of loss that might arise on that when the lot changed. ... [i]t may seem somewhat arbitrary for the Court to place that risk in the hands of Sunhill [sic], but they were the ones in charge of the lot during this period of time."

R. 2044 (Tr. Transcr., Vol. II, 90:6-12 & 91:13-15 (Dec. 3, 2013)).

As pointed out by Judge Westfall, a "...court can only supply reasonable [implied-in-law] terms to supplement a contract which is *silent*." R. 1760 (citing *Ross v. Epic Eng'g, PC*, 2013 UT App 136, ¶14 n.4, 307 P.3d 576 (add'l citations omitted)) (emphasis added). Judge Shumate found that the REPC was silent regarding the risk of loss associated with the additional soil the government placed on Lot 8. However, Judge Shumate found that the parties never mutually agreed to any specific terms regarding the placement of the soil. As such, Judge Shumate found that the REPC contained implied-at-law terms instead of mutually agreed upon terms¹⁵.

¹⁵ If Judge Shumate concluded that the REPC does impose a duty on Sun Hill to investigate the suitability of the soil for a pool based on some statements of the parties and not through implied-at-law terms in the REPC, then the trial judge improperly relied on parol evidence that he excluded during the trial. See *Garrett v. Ellison*, 93 Utah 184, 188, 72 P.2d 449 (Utah 1937) (stating that "Parol evidence is inadmissible to vary, alter,

Judge Westfall corrected the error of Judge Shumate by pointing out that the REPC was *not* silent on the risk of loss associated with additional soil placed on Lot 8 by the government. Judge Westfall found instead that the REPC imposed an explicit duty on the Appellants to engineer the pool that they chose to have Anthony Bros. construct at Lot 8. Here, Judge Westfall concluded that Judge Shumate never found that the parties ever mutually agreed that Sun Hill would be responsible to ensure the suitability of the soil for a swimming pool. R. 1759. Judge Westfall pointed out that Judge Shumate only found that the parties did not have an agreement regarding the investigation of the suitability of the soil for a pool.

This finding by Judge Westfall regarding Judge Shumate's finding is wholly consistent with the trial transcripts and the written judgment of Judge Shumate. Judge Shumate ruled that the REPC "... is in fact the agreement between the parties, that is basically uncontroverted...". R. 2044 (Tr. Transcr., Vol. II, 87:5-10 (Dec. 3, 2013)). Judge Shumate found that "... *there was no bargain* between the parties with respect to what liability under Exhibit 1 [the REPC] would apply to that change [or the addition of soil]." R. 2044 (Tr. Transcr., Vol. II, 90:18-19 (Dec. 3, 2013)) (emphasis added). In finding there was no "bargain" regarding the placement of soil, Judge Shumate stated that "[w]here there is no specific understanding of what the contract is mean [sic] and what the bargain is meant between the parties when this thousand year flood or between 500 and 1,000, maybe it's a 750 year flood if there is such a thing, when this occurred no one

control, or contradict the terms of a written instrument, in an action founded upon such writing, between the parties or privies thereto.").

took the next step to say what are the different circumstances.” R. 2044 (Tr. Transcr., Vol. II, 91:7-12 (Dec. 3, 2013)). Judge Shumate concluded that “... the 2005 flood changed what was contemplated by the parties when they entered into [the REPC], and that the defendant Sun Hill Homes was required to adapt to those changes. They adapted to those changes and *had every right to do so under the terms of this contract...*”. R. 2044 (Tr. Transcr., Vol. II, 88:9-14 (Dec. 3, 2013)) (emphasis added).

Judge Shumate found that “[w]here there is no express understanding as to the changed circumstances, the risk associated with the placement of additional soil is placed in the hands of Sun Hill Homes.” R. 1601, at ¶ 39. Thus, Judge Shumate imposed “implied-at-law” terms into the REPC. Judge Shumate erred in concluding that the REPC was in fact silent on this issue of the added soils. First, the REPC did address risk of loss and placed it squarely on the Appellants in section 5.8 of the REPC. Second, the REPC required the Appellants to properly engineer “[f]uture improvements”, such as a pool, under section 14.3. Third, the Appellant acknowledged in his own testimony that he knew he had the obligation to have the pool engineered. Because of the explicit terms of the REPC, which Appellant knew and understood, finding that the REPC is silent on the risk of loss regarding the soil fails to acknowledge the actual written agreement of the parties and is in error. As such, Judge Westfall did not abuse his discretion in finding that Judge Shumate erred by concluding that the integrated and unambiguous agreement of the parties did not address the risk of loss associated with a pool that was constructed by Anthony Bros. and which was not properly engineered. Judge Westfall’s ruling in correcting the error of Judge Shumate with regard to the implied-at-law terms is

reasonable given the other rulings of Judge Shumate regarding the integration and completeness of the REPC as the parties' agreement. *See Smith*, 2003 UT at ¶25 (stating that "we will reverse only if there is no reasonable basis for the [Rule 59] decision." (citation omitted).

V. There is no factual basis for Appellants' argument that there was an agreement between the parties regarding the use of the backyard as a "buildable area"; such an argument requires an improper modification of the REPC.

Appellants state in their Brief, at statement of fact number 28, that "[p]ursuant to conversations between Mr. Mardesich and Sun Hill's agent, Mr. Roger Stratford, it was agreed and understood that the level portion of the back yard area was increased and that the entire level portion of the backyard area was able to be used as a buildable area." Brief of Appellant, p. 9, Statement of Fact 28. This statement incorrectly characterizes the testimony of the Appellant and the record. The part of the transcript that Appellant cites to support this "statement of fact" actually states: "[s]o after that discussion with Roger Stratford, was it your understanding that the entire level portion of your yard would be able to be used as buildable area for backyard improvements?" To which, Mr. Mardesich responded "Yes.". R. 2043 (Tr. Transcr. Vol. I, 54:17-21 (Dec. 2, 2013)).

Mr. Mardesich does not actually state that it was "agreed and understood" and never actually testified that he had any agreement with Sun Hill other than the REPC. Mr. Mardesich never testified that he had a verbal agreement with Sun Hill regarding the suitability of the soil in the backyard for a pool or a verbal modification of the REPC. His understanding that the area where the soil had been added could be used for

improvements does not support a conclusion that there ever was a meeting of the minds between him and Sun Hill regarding the imposition of a duty on Sun Hill to investigate the suitability of the soils. Indeed, if Mr. Mardesich had attempted to testify that he had verbal discussions with Sun Hill regarding an agreement of the parties other than the REPC or verbal discussion that altered the REPC, counsel for Sun Hill would have objected as to parol evidence and, based on the prior ruling of Judge Shumate, such testimony would have been excluded.

The REPC requires that “[t]his Agreement cannot be changed, amended, or altered without the written agreement of Buyer and Seller, which written agreement must be signed by Buyer and an authorized representative of Seller.” R. 2047 (Tr. Ex. 1, REPC at § 29). Under the Statute of Frauds, “[e]very contract for the leasing for a longer period than one year, or for the sale, of any lands, or any interest in lands, shall be void unless the contract, or some note or memorandum thereof, is in writing subscribed by the party by whom the lease or sale is to be made, or by his lawful agent thereunto authorized in writing.” U.C.A. § 25-5-3. Here, the Appellants understood that all changes to the REPC had to be in writing and signed as is evidence by the twelve (12) addenda executed by the Appellants for Lot 8. *See* R. 2047 (Tr. Ex. 1, REPC, generally).

Further, it is unreasonable that the Appellant believed that the REPC had been modified to impose the duty of ensuring the suitability of the added soil upon Sun Hill because the Appellant himself testified that “[he] believe[d] that it was [his] responsibility to hire a contractor that would engineer [the pool], yes.” *See* R. 2043 (Tr. Transcr., Vol. I, 103:7 – 103:10 (Dec. 2, 2013)). Appellants brief fails to capture the

actual testimony, tenor, and findings during trial. Judge Shumate did not conclude that there was any agreement other than the REPC. As such, there is no agreement between Appellants and Sun Hill other than the REPC and there is no factual or legal basis for finding such an agreement.

VI. Appellants' argument that Sun Hill did not properly marshal evidence¹⁶ for its Rule 59 Motion fails to recognize the nature of Sun Hill's Rule 59 Motion.

Appellants attempts to argue that Sun Hill has failed to properly marshal the evidence in its Motion for New Trial. Appellants cites to *Harris v. IES Assocs.* to support their argument. 2003 UT App 112, 69 P.3d 297. However, Appellants have misunderstood the tenor of this case, the evidence needing to be marshaled, and the evidence actually marshaled. *Harris* states that “[i]n order to properly discharge the duty of marshaling the evidence, the challenger must present, in comprehensive and fastidious order, every scrap of competent evidence introduced at trial which *supports the very findings the appellant resists.*” 2003 UT App at ¶39 (emphasis added).

The Rule 59 Motion was based on Sun Hill resisting very specific findings of Judge Shumate. Sun Hill resisted the contradictory findings of Judge Shumate that (a) on the one hand the REPC is integrated and unambiguous and the agreement of the parties, and (b) on the other hand that Judge Shumate inserted a contradictory term that he said

¹⁶ Appellants have argued that Sun Hill failed to marshal evidence. However, Appellants now challenge the finding of Judge Shumate that there was no meeting of the minds or bargain outside of the REPC and yet Appellants fail to marshal all evidence in support of Judge Shumate's conclusion.

did not exist in the agreement¹⁷. In addition, Sun Hill resisted the contradictory findings that (c) on the one hand Anthony Bros. knew of possible soil problems with the Appellants' backyard and was the contractor that actually constructed the pool that ultimately failed and (d) on the other hand awarding joint and several liability against Sun Hill¹⁸. With regard to these specific contradictory findings, Sun Hill did marshal all necessary evidence.

During the proceedings, Judge Shumate ruled that the REPC was integrated and unambiguous and Appellants conceded and stipulated the same. As a result, Sun Hill presented a case based on the explicit terms of the REPC. Had Judge Shumate ruled during the trial that the REPC was ambiguous or that it was not integrated, then Sun Hill would have presented a very different case at trial including presenting additional testimony regarding evidence outside the four corners of the REPC. But this was not the finding of Judge Shumate and Sun Hill did not challenge Judge Shumate's ruling that the REPC was integrated and unambiguous in its Rule 59 Motion. On the contrary, Sun Hill agrees with the Court's ruling that the REPC was integrated and unambiguous and "in fact the agreement" of the parties. As a result, Sun Hill need not cull through every scrap of evidence that could point to an ambiguity in the contract or that it was not integrated. Because Sun Hill is not challenging the ruling of Judge Shumate that the REPC is

¹⁷ Specifically, Judge Shumate added a term to the REPC that Sun Hill had to ensure the suitability of the backyard for a pool even though the REPC was silent with regard to any obligation with regard to a pool, clearly provided Sun Hill the opportunity to change the lot specifications and plans, and required the Appellants to engineer the pool.

¹⁸ Judge Westfall's ruling renders the latter portion of the Rule 59 Motion regarding joint and several liability moot, but the issue was raised, briefed, and properly marshalled in the district court.

integrated and unambiguous and the agreement of the parties, Sun Hill need not marshal evidence that would contradict this ruling.

However, Sun Hill did challenge Judge Shumate's ruling that the REPC was silent as to the obligations of the parties as it related to the additional soil and the requirement to engineer improvements. Because the REPC is integrated and unambiguous, it may be interpreted as a matter of law. *See Kimball v. Campbell*, 699 P.2d 714, 716 (Utah 1985) (stating that "[a] contract's interpretation may be either a question of law, determined by the words of the agreement, or a question of fact, determined by extrinsic evidence of intent." (citation omitted)). Judge Shumate's addition of a term to the agreement appeared to be based on some reliance on parol evidence or, as Judge Westfall pointed out, based on an implied-at-law term. The REPC is not silent or ambiguous on the risk of loss associated with the pool constructed by Anthony Bros. and thus any additional term added by Judge Shumate is in error. Sun Hill properly marshalled evidence and Judge Westfall ruled accordingly.

VII. Sun Hill is entitled to its fees and costs in defending this action and this appeal.

"In Utah, attorney fees may be awarded 'if authorized by statute or by contract.'" *Crowley v. Black*, 2007 UT App 245, ¶12, 167 P.3d 1087 (citing *Dixie State Bank v. Bracken*, 764 P.2d 985, 988 (Utah 1988)). Here, the REPC provides the following:

In the event of any arbitration or mediation between Seller and Buyer, before or after the Closing, the prevailing party shall be entitled to an award of all attorney's fees and costs in an amount to be determined by the arbitrator or mediator hearing the matter. Any court or arbitration hearing any matter on appeal may also award such fees to the prevailing party in and for any prior mediation or arbitration.

R. 2047 (Tr. Ex. 1, REPC at § 25).

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